
AGENDA 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
City Council 

REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, JANUARY 25, 2024

Council Chambers 
9426 Main Street, Plymouth, California 

 Marianne Akerland, Mayor 

Michael McLaughlin, Vice Mayor
Doug Sim, Council Member

Peter Amoruso, Council Member
Keith White, Council Member

PLEASE NOTE: The Council may take up any agenda item at any time, regardless of the 
order listed. Action may be taken on any item on the agenda. Members of the public 
who wish to speak may be subject to a three (3) minute maximum time limit when 
addressing the Council, and/or the City may require speaker identification sheets 
be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk prior to being called upon by the Mayor to
provide public comment. 





January 25, 2024 AGENDA 1 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, January 25, 2024 
6:30 PM 

In-person participation by the public is permitted. Members of the public not attending in-person may submit written 
comments prior to the meeting by emailing your comment to the Deputy City Clerk at 
vmchenry@cityofplymouth.org before 3:30 PM on the day of the meeting. Emailed public comments will be 
distributed to the City Council and made part of the official record. 

Marianne Akerland, Mayor 
Michael McLaughlin, Vice Mayor Peter Amoruso, Council Member 
Douglas Sim, Council Member Keith White, Council Member 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The City of Plymouth preserves our small-town atmosphere and provides fiscally 
responsible services that fulfill public needs while protecting their quality of life. 

This meeting will be recorded. Council Chambers are wheelchair accessible. Special accommodations 
may be requested by contacting the City Clerk 72 hours in advance of the meeting. Please silence all 
cell phones or similar devices. 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL:
• Roll Call
• Pledge of Allegiance

2. APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA OF JANUARY 25, 2024

3. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Under provisions of the California Code, citizens wishing to address the Council for any matter
not on the agenda may do so at this time.  Please submit a completed Speaker Submittal Form
to the Deputy City Clerk. Comments are limited to three minutes or less and speakers are
requested to state their name and community of residence.  For public comments on agendized
items, speakers will be called by the Mayor at the point on the agenda when the item will be
heard.  Under provisions of the California Government Code, the City Council is prohibited from
materially discussing or acting on any item not on the agenda unless it can be demonstrated to
be of an emergency nature or an urgent need to take immediate action arose after the posting
of the agenda.

4. PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS/APPOINTMENTS: NONE

5. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed. There will be no separate discussion of
these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the
Council, staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar for
separate discussion and action.

mailto:vmchenry@cityofplymouth.org


January 25, 2024 AGENDA 2 

5.1 CORRESPONDENCE 

5.2 APPROVE THE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF JANUARY 11, 2024 

5.3 ADOPT CITY COUNCIL POLICY CC-010 CORE VALUES POLICY 

5.4 APPROVE CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR SUSAN AMENTLER FOR 
FINANCIAL SERVICES UP TO THE AMOUNT OF $15,000 

5.5 APPROVE THE CORPORATION YARD LEASE FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2024 AT 
THE RATE OF $715 PER MONTH. 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE

7. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:

7.1 INTRODUCE AND WAIVE THE FIRST READING (BY TITLE ONLY) OF AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2.08.180 OF THE PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL 
CODE INCREASING THE CITY MANAGER’S SPENDING AUTHORITY 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION AS 
PRESENTED 

7.2 REVIEW AND DISCUSS POSSIBLE CHANGES TO THE AMOUNT OF 
REMINDERS FOR DELINQUENT RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL WATER 
AND SEWER CUSTOMERS 

RECOMMENDATION: REVIEW AND ADVISE OF ANY CHANGES TO 
RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL WATER AND 
SEWER DELINQUENCY REMINDER NOTICING  

7.3 DISCUSS AND DETERMINE IF THE COUNCIL WISHES TO GRANT THE 
REQUEST OF $10,000 IN TOT MONIES, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR THE FOUR 
FIRES FOOD AND WINE FESTIVAL EVENT. 

      RECOMMENDATION: DISCUSS AND DETERMINE THE AMOUNT, IF 
ANY, THE COUNCIL WOULD LIKE TO AWARD 
TO THE FOUR FIRES FOOD & WINE FESTIVAL 

8. COUNCIL/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS – Brief reports on matters of general interest

8.1 CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

8.2 MAYOR & COUNCIL MEMBERS’ REPORTS

8.3 COUNCIL REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

9. CLOSED SESSION



January 25, 2024 AGENDA 3 

9.1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(2): 1 case 

9.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Gov Code 54957(b)(1)) 
Title: City Manager 

9.3 REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

10. ADJOURNMENT

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Public documents related to an item on the open session portion of this agenda, which are distributed to 
the City Council less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be available for public inspection at the 
Deputy City Clerk’s office located in Plymouth City Hall and at the time of the meeting. 
Persons interested in proposing an item for the City Council Agenda should contact a member of the City 
Council, or the City Manager. 

NOTICE: 
As presiding officer for this meeting, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council 
meetings, to remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disruptive conduct, 
and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a disability-related modification or 
accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in this meeting, please contact the 
Deputy City Clerk’s Office at (209) 245-6941 prior to the meeting. 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF AGENDA 
I, Victoria McHenry, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Plymouth, declare that the foregoing agenda for the 
January 25, 2024 Regular Meeting of the Plymouth City Council was posted and available for review on 
January 22, 2024 at the City Hall of the City of Plymouth, 9426 Main Street, Plymouth, California, 95669. 
The agenda is also available on the city website at cityofplymouth.org. 

Signed at Plymouth, California 
//s// 

  Victoria McHenry 
Deputy City Clerk 





3
PUBLIC COMMENT





5.1
CORRESPONDENCE





5.2 





January 11, 2024 MINUTES 1 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES DRAFT 

Thursday, January 11, 2024 
6:30 PM 

In-person participation by the public is permitted. Members of the public not attending in-person may submit written 
comments prior to the meeting by emailing your comment to the Acting Deputy City Clerk at 
dknight@cityofplymouth.org before 3:30 PM on the day of the meeting. Emailed public comments will be 
distributed to the City Council and made part of the official record. 

Marianne Akerland, Mayor 
Michael McLaughlin, Vice Mayor Peter Amoruso, Council Member 
Douglas Sim, Council Member Keith White, Council Member 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The City of Plymouth preserves our small-town atmosphere and provides fiscally 
responsible services that fulfill public needs while protecting their quality of life. 

This meeting will be recorded. Council Chambers are wheelchair accessible. Special accommodations 
may be requested by contacting the City Clerk 72 hours in advance of the meeting. Please silence all 
cell phones or similar devices. 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL:

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Marianne Akerland, Mayor; Michael McLaughlin, 
Vice Mayor; Peter Amoruso, Doug Sim, Keith White 

None 

 Margaret S. Roberts, City Manager; Frank Splendorio, 
City Attorney; Dana Knight, Acting Deputy City Clerk/
Zoom Technician 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: 

STAFF/ADVISORY PRESENT: 

STAFF/ADVISORY ABSENT: McLean Sonnenberg, City Clerk; Victoria McHenry, 
Deputy City Clerk; Joyce Czerwinsky, City Treasurer 

• Flag Salute led by Major and Cannon Begbie

2. APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA OF JANUARY 11, 2024

Motion made by Vice Mayor McLaughlin, second by Council Member Sim to approve the January 
11, 2024, Regular Meeting Agenda. Motion passed by a roll call vote 5-0 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Amy Champ from Plymouth brought up the topic of homelessness and proposed that the City adopt 
a policy to address this issue before it becomes a problem.   

mailto:dknight@cityofplymouth.org


January 11, 2024 MINUTES 2 

Mike Spinetta from Hawksview brought up the idea of weed eating, adding lights to the trail and 
cameras to help the homeless issue.  

Items 7.2 and 7.3 from the regular agenda items were moved due to time constraints from audience 
members with small children that needed to comment on the items.  

7.2   DETERMINE IF THE COUNCIL WOULD LIKE TO RECONSIDER ITS PREVIOUS 
DECISION WITH RESPECT TO ALLOCATION OF PROP 68 GRANT 
PROCEEDS AT LODGE HILL 

Motion made by Council Member Sim, second by Council Member Amoruso to reconsider the 
allocation of Prop 68 Grant Funds. Motion passed by a roll call vote 5-0. 

7.3 DISCUSS THE PROP 68 GRANT FUNDS AND POTENTIALLY DETERMINE USE 
OF GRANT PROCEEDS FOR MCGEE PARK [THIS ITEM ONLY TO BE 
DISCUSSED IF THE COUNCIL VOTES TO RECONSIDER ON ITEM 7.2] 

Cameron Begbie, Plymouth business owner, spoke and handed out a letter in support of using the 
funds to improve McGee Park. 
Rachel Lara, Plymouth business owner, thanked Public Works for keeping the park so nice and 
clean. She voiced the importance of improving McGee Park and how it would benefit our local 
community.  
Mike Spinetta from Hawksview complimented our local Main Street merchants. He would like to see 
the funds reallocated to improving McGee Park.   

Motion made by Vice Mayor McLaughlin, second by Council Member Sim to reallocate the Prop 68 
Grant funding to McGee Park. Motion passed by a roll call vote 5-0. 

4. PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS/APPOINTMENTS:

4.1 APPOINTMENTS TO REGIONAL AND LOCAL BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

Council Member White will serve on the Amador Air Quality Control Board, Tribal City Committee, 
Intergovernmental Committee and the Broadband Subcommittee. Council Member Amoruso will 
serve on the TOT Committee, Solid Water Management Regional Agency and the Solid Waste Task 
Force (LTF), Council Member Doug Sim will serve on the Amador Council of Tourism, AdHoc 
Committee and the Amador County Transportation Commission. Vice Mayor McLaughlin is on the 
Public Safety AdHoc Committee, OES/Disaster Council and Tribal-City Committee. Mayor Akerland 
is on the Amador County Transportation Commission, Amador Abandoned Vehicle Authority, 
ACRA, TOT Committee, Broadband Subcommittee, and the Grant Funding Subcommittee with 
Staff. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:

5.1 CORRESPONDENCE: NONE 

5.2 APPROVE THE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF DECEMBER 14, 2023 

5.3 ACCEPT THE WARRANT REGISTER FOR NOVEMBER 2023 

5.4 ACCEPT THE WARRANT REGISTER FOR DECEMBER 2023 



January 11, 2024 MINUTES 3 

5.5 ADOPT CITY COUNCIL POLICY CC-031 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 

5.6 ADOPT CITY COUNCIL POLICY CC-034 CITY COUNCIL APPOINTMENTS TO 
REGIONAL BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

5.7 APPROVE RESOLUTION 2024-01 APPROVING THE 2022/23 AMADOR 
COUNTY REGIONAL TRAFFIC MITIGATION FEE PROGRAM ANNUAL 
REPORT 

Motion made by Council Member Amoruso, second by Vice Mayor McLaughlin to approve the 
consent calendar items. Motion passed by a roll call vote 5-0. 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE

7. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:

7.1 REVIEW AND DISCUSS CHANGES TO CITY COUNCIL POLICY CC-048
TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX GRANTS 

After discussion, the council decided to table the item for now. 

  7.4    APPROVE FIRST AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH CITY 
MANAGER INCREASING ANNUAL COMPENSATION AND MAKING OTHER 
CONTRACTUAL CHANGES 

Motion made by Vice Mayor McLaughlin, second by Council Member White to approve the first 
amendment to employment agreement with City Manager increasing annual compensation and 
making other contractual changes. Motion passed by a roll call vote 5-0. 

7.5   REVIEW AND DISCUSS ANY CHANGES TO CITY COUNCIL POLICY CC-005  CITY 
COUNCIL-CITY ATTORNEY COMMUNICATIONS POLICY 

After discussion, the council decided to table the item for now pending guidance from our attorney. 

7.6 APPROVE TWO REPAIR PROJECTS AT THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, 
AWARDING CONTRACTS TO SHENANDOAH EXCAVATING IN THE AMOUNTS OF 
$18,070 AND $8,530 

Motion made by Council Member Amoruso, second by Council Member White to approve two repair 
projects at the wastewater treatment plant, awarding contracts to Shenandoah Excavating in the 
amounts of $18,070 and $8,530. Motion passed by a roll call vote 5-0. 

8. COUNCIL/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS – Brief reports on matters of general interest

8.1 CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

The fire station project is moving forward with the environmental report getting turned into HCD. 
Construction will proceed after a construction company is chosen at the March 14th meeting.  

The housing element environmental draft is up for review, and she hopes to have the final draft on 
the next agenda for approval.   



January 11, 2024 MINUTES 4 

The 5-year developmental impact study is complete and was submitted on time. It will be on the next 
agenda for action. The city-wide fee studies are in the progress of they are analyzing the data 
provided. Our municipal code codifier company was purchased and will look different. It will enable 
the city to gather information regarding the website. She met with the USDA regarding obtaining 
USDA grants. It was very informative, and she was advised to have our City Engineer be prepared 
when the right grant for our city comes available. City Manager Roberts will meet with PG&E 
regarding Rule 20A (the undergrounding of overhead wires). She was informed that we have 
funding to use for this project.  

8.2 MAYOR & COUNCIL MEMBERS’ REPORTS 

Council Member White encouraged the community to love one another instead of letting hate fester. 
He wants the community to move forward in a positive manner. Council Member White also thanked 
the community for the outpouring of support for the blood drive in honor of his Mom, Janet White.  

Council Member Amoruso wished everyone a Happy New Year. He is looking forward to a positive 
year for the City. 

Council Member Sim asked if the environmental impact report will go to the Planning Commission 
for review.  

Vice Mayor McLaughlin echoed Council Member White’s sentiment about fostering love instead of 
hate in our daily lives. He is looking forward to working together and doing good for our community. 

8.3 COUNCIL REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Vice Mayor McLaughlin would like to see the homeless issue looked at more closely to know what 
resources are available. Mayor Akerland will put together a list of resources that she is aware of that 
may be helpful.  

Mayor Akerland would like to see the issue of the City Clerk and City Treasurer being appointed 
instead of an elected position. Vice Mayor McLaughlin proposed a possible workshop to inform 
residents as to why this would be beneficial to the City.  

9. ADJOURNMENT : 8:34 pm 



5.3 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.3 

01/25/2024 

SUBJECT:  Adopt City Council Core Values Policy 

DEPARTMENT:   City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Margaret S. Roberts, City Manager 

TITLE 

ADOPT CITY COUNCIL POLICY CC-010 CORE VALUES POLICY. 

BACKGROUND 

The policy is designed to provide clear and positive statement of ethical behavior 
reflecting the core values of the City and the community it serves. The Policy includes 
practical strategies for addressing ethical questions and a valuable framework for 
decision-making and handling the City's day-to-day operations.  

There are goals for core values listed in the policy.  This policy applies to all city 
officials; appointed to serve on committees, boards, volunteers, City staff, elected 
officials. The Policy outlines how to represent the City in detail. The policy also has 
an enforcement component.  

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
This is not a “project” under Section 15378 of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) Guidelines.    

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Make a motion to adopt City Council Policy CC-010 Core Values Policy.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.3 

01/25/2024 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Policy CC-010 Core Values



CORE VALUES POLICY CC-010

CITY POLICY Effective Date: 

XX/XX/XXXX 

Revised Date: 

N/A 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

The City of Plymouth (City) designed this Core Values policy to provide clear, positive 
statements of ethical behavior reflecting the core values of the City and the community it 
serves. The Policy includes practical strategies for addressing ethical questions and a valuable 
framework for decision-making and handling the City's day-to-day operations. The City Council 
developed this Policy to reflect the issues and concerns of today's diverse society. 

POLICY 

The proper operation of democratic government requires that decision-makers be 
independent, impartial, and accountable to the people they serve. The City of Plymouth has 
adopted this Code to promote and maintain the highest personal and professional conduct 
standards in the City's government.  

All City Officials must subscribe to this Code, understand how it applies to their specific 
responsibilities, and practice its eight core values in their work. Because we seek public 
confidence in the City's services and the public trust of its decision-makers and decision-
influencers, our decisions and work must meet the most demanding ethical standards and 
demonstrate the highest levels of achievement in following this Code. 

DEFINITIONS 

I. City Official  – all elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, members
of advisory committees, and volunteers.

PROCEDURES 

I. Goals of the Code of Values:

a. To make Plymouth a better City built on mutual respect and trust.

b. To promote and maintain the highest standards of personal and professional
conduct among all involved in City government, City staff, volunteers, and
members of the City Council.

c. The Code is a touchstone for City Council and staff members in fulfilling their
roles and responsibilities.

II. Applicability

This Code shall apply to all City Officials as defined herein. 

III. Core Value:

a. As a Plymouth City Official, I will take the responsibilities of my role as a
representative of the City seriously. In practice, this value looks like this:

i. Except as otherwise protected under federal or state law, I recognize that



CC-010

Page 2 of 5 
Code of Ethics and Values 

my opinions on City business will be seen as the City’s position. I will use 
sound judgement and limit opining on City business in public to avoid 
misleading or confusing the public as to whether such statements are 
personal to me or official opinions of the City. 

ii. Except as otherwise protected under federal or state law, I recognize that
as a City Official, I am always a City Official. The residents do not know
when we are on or off duty. I will not take any action or conduct myself in
a manner that will be a detriment to the City.

iii. I will endeavor for open and honest communications with staff and the
public as it relates to City business. I will not hold back or embellish
information.

iv. I will use proper City channels to seek information and to share my
concerns.

b. As a representative of Plymouth, I will be ethical. In practice, this value looks like
this:

i. I am trustworthy, acting with the utmost integrity and moral courage. I
am truthful. I do what I say I will do. I am dependable.

ii. I make impartial decisions free of bribes, unlawful gifts, narrow political
interests, financial, and other personal interests that impair my
independence of judgment or action.

iii. I am fair, distributing benefits and burdens according to consistent and
equitable criteria.

iv. I extend equal opportunities and due process to all parties in matters
under consideration. If I engage in meetings and discussions with
constituents or other third parties, I do so without making voting
decisions or any improper or unauthorized representations on behalf of
the City.

v. I show respect for persons, confidences, and information designated as
"confidential."

vi. I use my title(s) only when conducting official City business for
information purposes or as an indication of background and expertise,
carefully considering whether I am exceeding or appearing to exceed my
authority.

vii. I will avoid actions that might cause the public or others to question my
independent judgment.

viii. As a trusted public servant, I maintain a constructive, creative, and
practical attitude toward the City's affairs and a deep sense of social
responsibility.



CC-010

Page 3 of 5 
Code of Ethics and Values 

c. As a representative of Plymouth, I will be professional. In practice, this value
looks like this:

i. I apply my knowledge and expertise to my assigned activities and the
interpersonal relationships that are part of my job in a consistent,
confident, competent, and productive manner.

ii. I approach my job and work-related relationships with a positive,
collaborative attitude.

iii. I keep my professional education, knowledge, and skills current and
growing.

iv. I treat my colleagues, staff, and the public with respect at all times.

d. As a Representative of Plymouth, I will be service-oriented. In practice, this value
looks like this:

i. I provide friendly, receptive, and courteous service to everyone.

ii. I am attuned to and care about the needs and issues of citizens, public
Officials, and City staff.

iii. I am interested, engaged, and responsive in my interactions with
constituents.

e. As a representative of Plymouth, I will be fiscally responsible. In practice, this
value looks like this:

i. I make decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact,
considering the City's long-term financial needs, especially its financial
stability.

ii. I demonstrate concern for properly using City assets (e.g., personnel,
time, property, equipment, funds) and follow established procedures.

iii. I make sound financial decisions that seek to preserve programs and
services for City residents.

iv. I know of and adhere to the City's procurement and fiscal policies.

f. As a representative of Plymouth, I am organized. In practice, this value looks like
this:

i. I efficiently make decisions and recommendations based on research and
facts, considering short- and long-term goals.

ii. I follow through responsibly, keeping others informed and responding in
a timely fashion.

iii. I am respectful of established City processes and guidelines.

g. As a representative of Plymouth, I will be communicative. In practice, this value
looks like this:



CC-010

Page 4 of 5 
Code of Ethics and Values 

i. I positively convey the City's care for and commitment to its citizens.

ii. I communicate in various ways that I am approachable, open-minded,
and willing to participate in dialog.

iii. I engage in effective two-way communication by listening carefully,
asking questions, and determining an appropriate response that adds
value to conversations.

h. As a representative of Plymouth, I will be collaborative. In practice, this value
looks like this:

i. I act cooperatively engage with groups and other individuals, working
together in a spirit of tolerance and understanding.

ii. I work towards consensus building at Brown Act meetings and gain value
from diverse opinions.

iii. I accomplish the goals and responsibilities of my position while respecting
my role as a team member.

iv. I consider the broader regional and state-wide implications of the City's
decisions and issues.

i. As a representative of Plymouth, I will use ingenuity. In practice, this value looks
like this:

i. I exhibit a proactive, innovative approach to setting goals and conducting
the City's business.

ii. I display a style that maintains consistent standards; but is also sensitive
to the need for compromise, "thinking outside the box," and improving
existing paradigms when necessary.

iii. I promote intelligent and thoughtful innovation to forward the City's
policy agenda and City services.

IV. Enforcement:

a. Any City Council member found to violate this Code may be subject to
admonition or censure by the City Council, pursuant to separately established
policy of the City Council.

b. In addition to any other remedy allowed by City policy or directive, any member
of any advisory Committee of the City (other than City Council members) found
in violation may be subject to dismissal from the Committee, consistent with the
rules of the Municipal Code or other policies, directive, or authorization of
Council.

c. In the case of an employee, the City Manager or an authorized designee shall
take appropriate action.



CC-010

Page 5 of 5 
Code of Ethics and Values 

REFERENCES 

City Council CC-008 – Conduct of Public Meetings 
City Council CC-015 – Interactions with City Staff 
City Council CC-031 City Council Communications 





5.4





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.4 

01/25/2024 

SUBJECT:  Approve a contract amendment for Susan Amentler. 

DEPARTMENT:   City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Margaret S. Roberts, City Manager 

TITLE 

APPROVE A CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR SUSAN AMENTLER FOR FINANCIAL 
SERVICES UP TO THE AMOUNT OF $15,000. 

BACKGROUND 

On January 4, 2024, the City entered into a contract with Susan Amentler 
“contractor” for financial services, assist in catching up on entering accounts 
receivable into the financial software, do some financial reporting, provide accounting 
services, and develop policies and procedures for Finance.   

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

This is not a “project” under Section 15378 of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) Guidelines.    

FISCAL IMPACT 

This increases the current contract from $5,000 to $15,000.  However, there is no 
new fiscal impact associated with this item as the cost will be paid from the cost 
savings from the vacant Senior Accountant position. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Make a motion to approve a contract amendment to approve a contract extension for 
Susan Amentler for Financial Services up to the amount of $15,000 (from $5,000), 
in a form approved by the City Attorney.  

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Original Contract





























5.5 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.5 
01/25/2024 

SUBJECT:  Rental Increase for Corp Yard Lease 

DEPARTMENT:   Office of the City Manager 

STAFF:  Margaret Roberts, City Manager 
Victoria McHenry, Deputy City Clerk 

TITLE 

APPROVE THE CORPORATION YARD LEASE FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2024 AT THE RATE 
OF $715 PER MONTH. 

BACKGROUND 

Currently the City rents property from the Fairgrounds for our Corporation Yard. They 
have raised our rent from $650 per month to $715 per month effective January 1, 
2024. This will equate to an annual charge of $8,580, which is an increase of $780 
annually.  Since 2022 the rent has gone from $500 per month to the new rate of 
$715, which is a 43% increase in the rental rate.   

The Fairgrounds does not contact the City prior to sending the lease, they just send 
the new lease in the mail with the new lease amount without any discussion or 
negotiations.  Staff will once again be looking at moving the Corporation Yard off this 
site and out to the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP).  We have discretionary 
funds sitting with CIRA our risk management company that can greatly offset the 
cost of the building.  I will have more to report on this at the meeting as staff will be 
meeting on Tuesday regarding the move. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
This lease is a Class 1 categorically exempt action under Section 15301 of the CEQA 
Guidelines.     

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is an increased cost of an additional $780 per year associated with this item. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.5 
01/25/2024 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve 2024 Lease for Corporation Yard at the Fairgrounds Property at the rate of 
$715 per month, in a form approved by the City Attorney. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Lease



















7.1





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 

01/25/2024 

SUBJECT:  Consider an Ordinance increasing the City Manager’s spending 
authority. 

DEPARTMENT:   City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Margaret S. Roberts, City Manager 

TITLE 

INTRODUCE AND WAIVE THE FIRST READING (BY TITLE ONLY) OF ORDINANCE NO. 
2024-03, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
AMENDING SECTION 2.08.180 INCREASING THE CITY MANAGER’S SPENDING 
AUTHORITY TO $20,000. 

BACKGROUND 

The current spending authority for the City Manager is $5,000 and has been in place 
since at least 2008.  It is hard to do some business at time with a low authority such 
as we ran into with purchasing chlorine for the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  There 
are other items that the City can move more efficiently to get things accomplished, 
such as the recent repairs at the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  This would not be to 
purchase things that are not approved in the budget or for emergency work such as 
water leaks. 

The other City Managers in the County have the following spending authorities: 
Ione: $15,000 
Jackson: $20,000 
Sutter Creek: $50,000 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
This is not a “project” under Section 15378 of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) Guidelines.    

FISCAL IMPACT 

None from this action alone. All purchases would be subject to budgetary 
appropriations. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 

01/25/2024 

RECOMMENDATION 

Make a motion to introduce and waive the first reading (by title only) of Ordinance 
No. 2024-03, an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Plymouth Amending 
Section 2.08.180 Increasing the City Manager’s Spending Authority to $20,000.  

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Proposed Ordinance
2. Current Code



ORDINANCE 2024-03 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PLYMOUTH AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2.08.180  

INCREASING THE CITY MANAGER’S SPENDING AUTHORITY TO 
$20,000 

SECTION 1. RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the current spending authority for the City Manager is $5,000 and has been in place since 
at least 2008; and 

WHEREAS, it is hard to do some business at time with a low authority such as we ran into with 
purchasing chlorine for the Wastewater Treatment Plant; and 

WHEREAS, this difficult is especially aggravated with increasing costs and unprecedented inflation; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City has evaluated other cities in the region to determine their purchasing authorities 
delegated to City Managers. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT: The first sentence of the second paragraph of §2.08.180 of the City of Plymouth 
Municipal Code is amended as reflected below (the rest of Section 2.08.180 shall remain in entirety): 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of the City, without City Council approval, 
contracts in the amount of twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00) or less for budgeted items and to delegate this 
authority in writing to subordinate officers and employees.  

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance shall none the less remain in full force and effect. The people hereby 
declare that they would have adopted each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
Ordinance, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases, 
portions of this Ordinance be declared invalid or unenforceable. 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLICATION. This ordinance shall take effect (30) days after its 
adoption and shall be published at least once in a newspaper of general circulation published by the City of 
Plymouth or shall be published or posted in accordance with the requirement of Government Code Section 
36933. 

The foregoing Ordinance was adopted at a regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Plymouth held 
on the 25th day of January, 2024 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 



Marianne Akerland, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Victoria McHenry, Deputy City Clerk 



§ 2.08.180. Purchasing and expenditure control.

The City Manager is hereby authorized to approve and execute purchase orders and City
warrants and checks for the City, and all divisions and departments thereof, consistent
with the procedures provided in Chapter 3.08 of the Plymouth Municipal Code. It shall
be the duty of the City Manager to see that no expenditures shall be recommended to the
City Council except on approval of the City Manager or authorized representative.

The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of the City, without City
Council approval, contracts in the amount of $5,000 or less for budgeted items and
to delegate this authority in writing to subordinate officers and employees. The City
Manager shall submit a quarterly report to the City Council which includes a list of all
such contracts entered during the previous three months. No contract shall be split into
smaller segments to allow the use of these provisions.

Nothing in this section shall allow departure from Chapter 3.08 of the Plymouth
Municipal Code or other City purchasing requirements of the City.
( Ord. 2008-02 § 1)

City of Plymouth, CA

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/PL4989 on 2024-01-20





7.2 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 

01/25/2024 

SUBJECT:  Changes for residential and commercial water and sewer noticing 
requirements.  

DEPARTMENT:   City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Margaret S. Roberts, City Manager 

TITLE 

REVIEW AND DISCUSS CHANGES FOR RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL WATER AND 
SEWER NOTICING REQUIREMENTS. 

BACKGROUND 

Currently City staff sends out multiple reminders per month reminding residential 
and commercial customers who are delinquent to pay their bills.  Currently the 
Finance Department has the noticing schedule as shown in Attachment 1.  As you 
see the City currently spends an exorbitant amount of time pulling the data together, 
printing, folding, stuffing, stamping the envelopes and mailing the notices. This also 
is a cost of materials and staff time of which there are many tasks that staff could 
otherwise be doing.   

Generally, there are requirements under SB 998 for noticing which are at least seven 
(7) days prior to possible termination of service.  I would recommend that the City
also include the 48 hour notice on the doors.  Any changes that we make would
require an ordinance and policy changes to our current SB 998 policy that would be
brought back to a future meeting.

Staff is looking for a discussion on potentially changing the amount of reminders that 
we send to our delinquent customers, saving on materials and staff time.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

Depending on the changes, there could be cost savings. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 

01/25/2024 

RECOMMENDATION 

Provide Direction as Requested 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Current noticing schedule
2. SB 998
3. Current Policy



No�ces, Meter Read and Billing Dates 
Jan 16, 2024 - Feb 15, 2024 

Reminder (R)  Mail out Jan 22, 2024 

15 Day No�ce (C)  Mail out Jan 22, 2024 

10 Day No�ce (R)  Post on Door Jan 26, 2024 

Final No�ce (R)  Post on Door Feb 2, 2024 

48 Hour No�ce (C)  Mail out  Feb 2, 2024 

24 Hour No�ce (C)  Post on Door Feb 6, 2024 

Shut Off (R & C)  Post on Door Feb 7, 2024 a�er noon 

Meter Reads Public Works Feb 14th & 15th, 2024 

Re read meter Public Works Feb 15th & 16th, 2024 

Billing  Finance Feb 16th & 20th, 2024 

(R) = Residen�al (C) = Commercial

Mail out = Finance 

Post on Door = Public Works 













RESIDENTIAL WATER SERVICES 

DISCONTINUATION POLICY 
CC-058

CITY POLICY Effective Date: 

03/26/2020 

Revised Date: 

PURPOSE 
This policy enumerates the City of Plymouth’s administrative actions for the collection of 
residential delinquent accounts, including notifications, charges, and discontinuation of 
water service. This policy will be made available to the public on the City’s website.  

As an urban or community water system that supplies water to more than 200 service 
connections, the City is governed by Senate Bill No. 998 Chapter 891, Water Shutoff 
Protection Act. 

1) General
a) This Policy applies only to disconnection of residential water service for

nonpayment. The City’s existing ordinances, resolutions, policies, and
procedures shall continue to apply to non-residential water service accounts
and to disconnection of residential water service for other reasons, including
the termination of a service connection by the City due to a customer
violation of any other ordinance, rule, regulation, or policy of the City. In the
event of any conflict between this Policy and any other ordinance, rule
regulation, or policy of the City, this Policy shall prevail. In the event of any
conflict between this Policy and state law, state law shall prevail.

b) Customer Responsibility:  Under applicable City ordinances, resolutions,
policies, and procedures, bills for water service are rendered to each
customer on a monthly basis. And are due and payable on the first day of
the month following the close of the billing period. And shall be delinquent
if not paid within fifteen days from that date. Upon delinquency, a penalty of
ten (10) percent of the balance due for that billing period shall be charged.
It is the customer’s responsibility to ensure that payments are received at
the City’s office in a timely manner. Payment may be made to the City’s
office, online, by phone or to the address for remittance of mailed payments.

c) Availability of Policy:  The City shall provide this Policy and all written
notices given under this Policy in English, Spanish and in any other
language spoken by at least 10 percent of the people residing in the City’s
service area or required by Civil Code section 1632. This Policy shall be
posted and maintained on the City’s internet website.

d) Contact Telephone Number: The City can be reached at (209) 245-6941
Ext 253 for assistance concerning the payment of water bills and to discuss
options for stopping disconnection of residential service for nonpayment.

2) Disconnection of Residential Water Service for Nonpayment.



CC-058

Page 2 of 8 
Residential Water Services Discontinuation 

a) 60-day Delinquency Period:  The City shall not disconnect residential
water service for nonpayment of a service bill until a customer’s payment
has been delinquent for 60 days.

b) Reminder Notice:  An account that remains unpaid after the 15th of the
month of water and/or sewer billing is considered delinquent. A penalty of
ten (10) percent of the balance due for that billing period shall be charged.
A reminder notice will be sent to the customer explaining the delinquent
amount and providing the original due date will be sent out five (5) business
days after delinquency.

c) 10-Day Notice:  Not less than 10 days before disconnection of residential
service for nonpayment, the City shall contact the customer named on the
account by written notice. If mailing address is different from property
address, the notice will be placed in a conspicuous location at the property.
1) The notice will include:

I. Customer’s name and mailing address
i. “Occupant” will take place of customer’s name and mailing

address if placed at the property
II. Amount of the delinquency

III. Date by which payment or arrangement for payment is required
in order to avoid disconnection of residential water service

IV. A description of the process to apply for an extension of time to
pay the delinquent charges

V. A description of the procedure to petition for bill review and
appeal

VI. A description of the procedure by which the customer may
request a deferred, reduced or alternative payment schedule,
including an amortization of the delinquent residential service
charges, consistent with this Policy.

VII. The City’s telephone number, business & mailing address,
website and hours of operation of the City.

2) If mailing of the written notice is returned through the mail as
undeliverable, the City shall place in a conspicuous place a notice of
imminent disconnection of residential service for nonpayment.

d) 5-Day Notice (Final Notice):  The City shall make a reasonable, good faith
effort to contact an adult residing at the premises by posting in a
conspicuous location at the property, a notice of termination of service at
least 5 days prior to termination.
1) This notice will include:

I. “Occupant” will take place of customer’s name
II. Amount of the delinquency

III. Date by which payment or arrangement for payment is required
in order to avoid disconnection of residential water service



CC-058

Page 3 of 8 
Residential Water Services Discontinuation 

IV. The City’s telephone number, business & mailing address,
website and hours of operation of the City.

e) Service Restoration information: Upon disconnection, the City shall
provide the customer with information on how to restore residential service.
Which will require payment of the full balance on account and reconnection
fee of up to $50 during regular business hours.

3) Restrictions on Disconnection of Water Service:
a) The City shall not disconnect residential water service for nonpayment of a

service bill until a customer’s account has been delinquent for 60 days
b) The City shall not disconnect residential service in any of the following

situations:
I. During the time that the City is investigating a customer dispute or

complaint under Section 8 of this Policy
II. When a customer has been granted an extension of the period for

payment of a bill
c) The City shall not disconnect residential service if ALL of the following

conditions are met:
I. The customer, or a tenant of the customer, submits to the City the

certification of a primary care provider, as defined in section
14088(b)(1)(A) of the Welfare and Institutions Code, that
disconnection of residential service will be life threatening to, or pose
a serious threat to the health and safety of, a resident of the property
where residential service is provided.

II. The customer demonstrates that he or she is financially unable to
pay for residential service within the City of Plymouth’s normal billing
cycle. The customer shall be deemed financially unable to pay for
residential service within the City of Plymouth’s normal billing cycle
if  any member of the customer’s household is a current recipient of
CalWORKs, CalFresh, general assistance, Medi-Cal, Supplemental
Security Income/State Supplementary Payment Program, or
California Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women,
Infants, and Children, or the customer declares that the household’s
annual income is less than 200 percent of the federal poverty level.

III. The customer is willing to enter into an alternative payment
arrangement, consistent with the provisions of Section 4 of this
Policy.

d) The City is prohibited from terminating water service to any customer or
tenant of a customer on any Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or outside of
its normal operating hours

e) Residential Customers who are 65 years of age or older, or who are
dependent adults as defined in Welfare and Institutions Code section



CC-058

Page 4 of 8 
Residential Water Services Discontinuation 

15610.23 shall be notified that they may request the City notify a designated 
third person when the Customer’s account is past due and subject to 
termination. 

4) Alternative Payment Arrangements
a) Options: Upon request, the City will consider the following options with a

delinquent customer to avert discontinuation of residential service for
nonpayment:

I. Amortization of the unpaid balance
II. Participation in an alternative payment schedule

III. A partial or full reduction of the unpaid balance, financed without
additional charges to other ratepayers Temporary deferral of
payment

(Collectively “Payment Arrangements.”) 
b) City Administration: The City’s Manager, or his or her designee, may choose

which of the Payment Arrangements described in Section 4(a), option.
Ordinarily, the Payment Arrangement offered should result in payment of
any remaining outstanding balance within 12 months. The City may charge
an administrative fee for the cost of administering Payment Arrangements
under the provision. The City Manager, or his or her designee, is authorized
to prepare and approve a Payment Arrangement Agreement with a
customer consistent with this Section 4.

c) Customer Obligations: If the City and customer enter into a Payment
Arrangement under this Section 4, the customer shall comply with the
agreement or other arrangement and remain current on any new water
service charges as they are billed in reduction of any unpaid charges on
subsequent bills while paying delinquent charges under an alternative
payment arrangement. Commencing on the date the first payment
arrangement is entered into, customers who fail to comply with any agreed
payment arrangement will not be eligible to establish future payment
arrangements for a period of 24 months, except as otherwise prohibited by
law.

5) Disconnection After Failure to Comply with Alternative Payment
Arrangements

a) If the City and customer enter into any Payment Arrangement under Section
4, the City may disconnect service no sooner than five business days after
the City posts a final notice of intent to disconnect service in a prominent
and conspicuous location at the property under either of the following
circumstances:

I. The customer fails to comply with the Alternative Payment
Arrangements



CC-058

Page 5 of 8 
Residential Water Services Discontinuation 

II. Temporary deferral of payment
b) The notice of termination under this Section 5 shall include all of the

following information:
I. The customer’s name and address
II. Notice of the customer’s noncompliance with the Payment

Arrangement
III. The Payment Arrangement or other conditions the customer must

satisfy in order to avoid termination
IV. The City’s telephone number, business & mailing address, website

and hours of operation of the City.

6) Disconnection in Master Meter Landlord-Tenant Situations
a) Applicability: This section applies to City service through an individual meter

to a detached single-family dwelling, a multi-unit residential structure,
mobile home park, or permanent residential structure in a labor camp, only
if the owner, manager or operator is the customer of record, and there is a
landlord-tenant relationship between the residential occupants and the
owner, manager, or operator of the building.

b) Notice: The City shall make every good faith effort to inform the residential
occupants, by means of written notice, when the account is in arrears that
service will be terminated at least 10 days prior to the termination. This
notice shall further inform the residential occupants that they have the right
to become City customers, to whom the service will then be billed, without
being required to pay any amount which may then be due on the delinquent
account.

c) Service to Occupants: The City is not required to make service available to
the residential occupants unless each residential occupant agrees to the
terms and conditions of City water service and meets the requirements of
law and the City ordinances, rules, regulations, and policies. However, if
one or more of the residential occupants are willing and able to assume
responsibility for the subsequent charges to the account to the satisfaction
of the City, or if there is a physical means legally available to the City of
selectively terminating service to those residential occupants who have not
met the requirements of the City’s ordinances, rules, regulations, and
policies, the City shall make service available to those residential occupants
who have met those requirements. Lease or rental agreement required.

d) Proof of Credit:  If prior service for a period of time is a condition for
establishing credit with the City, residence and proof of prompt payment of
rent or other credit obligation acceptable to the City for that period of time
is a satisfactory equivalent.

e) Detached Single-Family Dwellings: In the case of a detached single-family
dwelling, the City may do any of the following:



CC-058

Page 6 of 8 
Residential Water Services Discontinuation 

I. Give notice of termination at least seven days prior to the proposed
termination

II. In order for the amount due on the delinquent account to be waived,
require an occupant who becomes a customer to verify that the
delinquent account customer of record is or was the landlord,
manager, or agent of the dwelling. Waived amount may be applied
to Tax Roll.

7) Procedure to Contest or Appeal a Bill
A customer may appeal or contest the amount set forth in any bill for residential
water service pursuant to the following procedure:

a) General Appeal:  Within five days of receipt of the bill for water service, a
customer has a right to request an appeal or review of any bill or charge
rendered by the City. The request must be made in writing and be delivered
to the City office. For so long as the customer’s appeal and any resulting
investigation is pending, the City cannot disconnect water service to the
customer

b) 10-Day Notice Appeal: In addition to the appeal rights under subsection (a)
above, a customer who receives a 10-Day Notice described in Section 2(c)
of this Policy may request an appeal or review of the bill to which the notice
relates within five business days of the date of notice. However, no such
appeal or review rights shall apply to any bill for which an appeal or request
for review under subsection (a) above, has been made. Any appeal or
request for review under this subsection must be in writing and request for
an appeal must be delivered to the City’s office within five-day period. For
so long as the customer’s appeal and any resulting investigation is pending,
the City cannot disconnect water service to the customer.

c) Appeal Process:
I. Following receipt of a request for an appeal or review under

subsections (a) or (b), above, the City’s Manager, or his or her
designee shall evaluate the request for review and supporting
material provided by the customer the information on file with the City
concerning the water charges in question. Within 10 days after
receipt of the customer’s request for review, The City’s Manager, or
his or her designee shall render a decision as to the accuracy of the
water charges set forth on the bill and shall provide the appealing
customer with a brief written summary of the decision.

II. If water charges are determined to be incorrect, the City will provide
a corrected invoice and payment of the revised charges will be due
within 10 calendar days of the invoice date for revised charges. If the
revised charges remain unpaid for more than 60 calendar days after
the corrected invoice is provided, water service will be disconnected.



CC-058

Page 7 of 8 
Residential Water Services Discontinuation 

Prior to disconnection, the City shall provide the customer with the 
10-Day Notice in accordance with Section 2(c), above. Water service
will only be restored upon full payment of all outstanding water
charges, penalties, interest, and any applicable reconnection
charges.

III. If the water charges in question are determined to be correct, the
water charges are due and payable within 3 business days after
receipt of The City’s Manager’s, or his or her designee’s decision. At
the time the decision is rendered, the customer will be advised of the
right to further appeal to the City Clerk within 30 days of the date the
account becomes delinquent, or within 10 days after the receipt of
the denial from The City’s Manager, or his or her designee,
whichever is later. The City’s Manager, or his or her designee will
issue a written determination within 15 days. Any such appeal must
be filed in writing within 10 business days after receipt of The City’s
Manager, or his or her designee decision. The appeal hearing will
occur before an impartial hearing officer, as selected by the City
Manager, within a reasonable time.

IV. If the customer does not timely appeal, the water charges in question
shall be immediately due and payable. In the event the charges are
not paid in full within 60 calendar days after the original billing date,
then the City shall provide customer with the 10-Day Notice in
accordance with Section 2(c), above, and may disconnect water
service to the customer’s property if the outstanding bill is not timely
paid.

V. When a hearing is requested, the customer will be required to
personally appear before the hearing officer if physically able, and
present supporting material and reasons as to why the water charges
on the bill in question are not accurate. The hearing officer shall
evaluate the evidence presented by the customer, as well as the
information on file with the City concerning the water charges in
question (including the City’s Manager, or his or her designee
decision) and any staff presentation, and render a decision as to the
accuracy of the charges. The decision shall be final and binding.

VI. If the Hearing Officer finds that the water service charges in question
are incorrect, the customer will be invoiced for the revised charges.
If the revised charges remain unpaid for more than 60 calendar days
after the corrected invoice is provided, water service will be
disconnected, on the next regular working day after expiration of the
period. The City shall provide the customer with the 10-Day Notice
in accordance with Section2(c)., above, and may disconnect water



CC-058

Page 8 of 8 
Residential Water Services Discontinuation 

service to the customer’s property if the outstanding bill is not timely 
paid 

d) Any overcharges due from the City will be reflected as a credit on the next
regular bill to the customer.

e) Water service to any customer shall not be disconnected at any time during
which the customer’s appeal to the City’s Manager, or his or her designee
or Hearing Officer is pending.

Previously Policy # 2020-01 



7.3 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3 

01/25/2024 

SUBJECT:  Application for a TOT Grant. 

DEPARTMENT:   City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Margaret S. Roberts, City Manager 

TITLE 

DISCUSS AND DETERMINE IF THE COUNCIL WISHES TO GRANT THE REQUEST 
OF $10,000 IN TOT MONIES, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR THE FOUR FIRES 
FOOD AND WINE FESTIVAL EVENT 

BACKGROUND 

Four Fires Food & Wine Festival have applied for a TOT Grant in the amount of 
$10,000. This year’s event is scheduled to be held on May 4th at the Amador 
Fairgrounds.  The Council has sponsored this event with grants in the past.  This 
event typically brings over 2,000 participants to the area who use lodging, and dining 
in Plymouth.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

This will have a fiscal impact in the amount of any award given to the applicant. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Discuss and determine the amount, if any, the Council would like to award to the 
Four Fires Food & Wine Festival.   

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Application



PLYMOUTH CITY HALL • 9426 MAIN STREET • P.O.BOX 429 • PLYMOUTH, CA  95669 
PHONE (209) 245-6941 • FAX (209) 245-6953 

EMAIL: mdelatorre@cityofplymouth.org 

TOT GRANT 
 APPLICATION 

Date:  ___________________ 

NAME OF ACTIVITY:  ______________________________________________________________________ 

APPLICANTS CONTACT INFORMATION:             SECONDARY CONTACT PERSON: 

NAME:  _____________________________________   NAME: __________________________________ 

ADDRESS: ___________________________________   ADDRESS: ________________________________ 

CELL NUMBER:  ______________________________    CELL NUMBER: ____________________________ 

EMAIL:  _____________________________________   EMAIL: __________________________________ 

AMOUNT BEING REQUESTED:  $_________________ 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY: (ATTACH SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ADDITIONAL PAGES IF MORE SPACE IS NEEDED) 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE: __________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

EVENTS ESTIMATED BUDGET:  $___________________   ESTIMATED ATTENDANCE:  __________________ 

HAVE YOU BEEN AWARDED TOT GRANT FUNDS IN THE LAST 3 YEARS?  YES ____     NO ____ 
IF YES, PLEASE ATTACH A LIST OF THOSE EVENTS. 

        FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY: TIME/DATE STAMP 






	AGENDA COVER & back  City Council Meetings COLOR
	All Item Sheets COLOR
	01.25.2024 CC Regular Meeting  Agenda 
	CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF AGENDA

	01.11.2024 Regular Meeting MINUTES DRAFT
	01.11.2024 Regular Meeting MINUTES DRAFT
	5.3 Core Values Policy SR-c1
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	5.3 Core Values Policy-c1
	5.4 Amentler Contract SR-c1
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	5.4 Amentler Contract
	5.4 Amentler Contract SR-c1.pdf
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	01.04.2024 Susan Amentler - Finance Consultant.pdf

	5.5 Fairground Corp Yard Lease
	5.5 Fairground Corp Yard SR-c1.pdf
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	01.2024 Corp Yard Lease.pdf

	5.5 Fairground Corp Yard SR-c1
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	01.2024 Corp Yard Lease
	7.1 Attach 1 - CM Purchasing Authority-c1
	ORDINANCE 2024-03
	SECTION 2. AMENDMENT: The first sentence of the second paragraph of §2.08.180 of the City of Plymouth Municipal Code is amended as reflected below (the rest of Section 2.08.180 shall remain in entirety):

	7.1 CM Purchasing Authority SR-c1
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	7.1 CM Purchasing Authority
	7.1 CM Purchasing Authority SR-c1.pdf
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	7.1 Attach 1 - CM Purchasing Authority-c1.pdf
	ORDINANCE 2024-03
	SECTION 2. AMENDMENT: The first sentence of the second paragraph of §2.08.180 of the City of Plymouth Municipal Code is amended as reflected below (the rest of Section 2.08.180 shall remain in entirety):

	Attach 2 - CM Purchasing Authority.pdf
	§ 2.08.180 Purchasing and expenditure control.


	Attach 2 - CM Purchasing Authority
	§ 2.08.180 Purchasing and expenditure control.

	7.2 Water & Sewer Noticing
	7.2 Water & Sewer Noticing-c1.pdf
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	7.2 Attach 1 - Monthly notices, meter reads and billing dates.pdf
	7.2 Attach 2 - SB 998.pdf
	7.2 Attach 3 - CC-058 - Residential Water Services Discontinuation.pdf

	7.2 Water & Sewer Noticing-c1
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	7.2 Attach 1 - Monthly notices, meter reads and billing dates
	7.2 Attach 2 - SB 998
	7.2 Attach 3 - CC-058 - Residential Water Services Discontinuation
	7.3 TOT Grant Application
	TOT Grant application SR-c1.pdf
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT(S)

	7.3 TOT-GRANT-APPLICATION-Four Fires 2024.pdf

	7.3 TOT-GRANT-APPLICATION-Four Fires 2024
	Blank Page
	01.25.2024 CC Regular Meeting  Agenda use.pdf
	CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF AGENDA

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	01.25.2024 CC Regular Meeting  Agenda .pdf
	CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF AGENDA


	Date: 12/19/2023
	NAME OF ACTIVITY: Four Fires Food & Wine Festival
	NAME: Megan Van Hook
	NAME_2: John DiStasio
	ADDRESS: 9313 Pacific Street
	ADDRESS_2: 10788 Shenandoah Road
	CELL NUMBER: 209.245.6992
	CELL NUMBER_2: 916.870.3563
	EMAIL: megan@amadorwine.com
	EMAIL_2: john@distasiovineyards.com
	AMOUNT BEING REQUESTED: 10,000
	BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY ATTACH SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ADDITIONAL PAGES IF MORE SPACE IS NEEDED 1: The Four Fires Food & Wine Festival is one of the premiere events hosted by the Amador 
	BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY ATTACH SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ADDITIONAL PAGES IF MORE SPACE IS NEEDED 2: Vintners Association in May at the Amador Fairgrounds. The event brings almost 2000 participants
	BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY ATTACH SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ADDITIONAL PAGES IF MORE SPACE IS NEEDED 3: to Plymouth for this upscale event. Last year's event received excellent reviews from participants - 96% said they would
	BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY ATTACH SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ADDITIONAL PAGES IF MORE SPACE IS NEEDED 4: probably/definitely attend again. In addition, the event brings considerable revenues to local
	BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY ATTACH SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ADDITIONAL PAGES IF MORE SPACE IS NEEDED 5: businesses in Plymouth. 42% of festival participants said they also dined or lodged at local businesses.
	STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 1: The AVA is a membership based organization to bring consumer awareness
	STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 2: to our wineries and help support our local community. The Four Fires event  brings considerable revenues to 
	STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 3: Plymouth businesses since 42% of festival participants said they also dined or lodged locally while attending the event.
	EVENTS ESTIMATED BUDGET: 10,000
	ESTIMATED ATTENDANCE: 1,800-2,000
	HAVE YOU BEEN AWARDED TOT GRANT FUNDS IN THE LAST 3 YEARS YES: x
	NO: 


